

Agreement

between the

HARBOR BEACH COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

and the

TRI-COUNTY BARGAINING ASSOCIATION

July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2008 3J060 06 30 2008 HBEA | MEA E X

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION	2
ARTICLE II - MEMBERSHIP FEES, PAYROLL DEDUCTION, AND FAIR SHARE AGREEMENT	2
ARTICLE III - BOARD RIGHTS	
ARTICLE IV - TEACHER RIGHTS	
ARTICLE V - TEACHERS EMPLOYMENT AND DUTIES	7
ARTICLE VI - TEACHING HOURS	
ARTICLE VII - TEACHING LOADS AND ASSIGNMENTS	
ARTICLE VIII - TEACHING CONDITIONS	11
ARTICLE IX - PAID LEAVE	
ARTICLE X - LEAVES OF ABSENCE	
ARTICLE XI - INSURANCE PROTECTION	
ARTICLE XII - TEACHER EVALUATION	
ARTICLE XIII - PROTECTION OF TEACHERS	25
ARTICLE XIV - NEGOTIATION PROCEDURES	26
ARTICLE XV - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES	
ARTICLE XVI - SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT	
ARTICLE XVII - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	
ARTICLE XVIII - LAYOFF AND RECALL PROCEDURES	32
ARTICLE XIX - PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION	35
DURATION OF AGREEMENT	38
SCHEDULE A	39
SCHEDULE B	43
SCHOOL CALENDAR	45
APPENDIX A	46
APPENDIX B	47
TEACHER EVALUATION FORM	
LETTER OF AGREEMENT	
LETTER OF AGREEMENT	55
LETTER OF AGREEMENT	56

AGREEMENT

This Agreement entered into this August 9, 2003, by and between the Board of Education of Harbor Beach Community School District, Harbor Beach, Michigan, hereinafter called the "Board" and the Harbor Beach Education Association as represented by the Tri-County Bargaining Association, MEA/NEA, hereinafter called the "Association". This Agreement sets forth the hours, wages, and conditions of employment to be observed between the parties of the Harbor Beach Community School District.

ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION

- A. The Board hereby recognizes the Association as the exclusive bargaining representative, for the purpose of collective bargaining with respect to wages, hours and conditions of employment, as defined in Section II of Act 379, Public Acts of 1965, for all professional personnel employed by the Harbor Beach Community School District including classroom teachers, long term substitute teachers, guidance counselors, and school librarians, but excluding all supervisory and executive personnel (as defined by PERA), and all non-certified personnel.
- B. The term "teacher" when used hereinafter in this Agreement shall refer to all employees represented by the Association in the bargaining unit as above defined.
- C. There shall be no discrimination, intimidation, interference, restraint, coercion by or on behalf of the Board or by or on behalf of the Association regarding any teacher. The provisions of this Agreement shall be applied to all employees covered by this Agreement without discrimination as to race, color, religion, sex, age, marital status, disability or national origin. Reference to gender in this Agreement shall mean male or female. The Board and the Association will jointly comply with applicable statutes regarding non-discrimination in employment matters.

ARTICLE II - MEMBERSHIP FEES, PAYROLL DEDUCTION, AND FAIR SHARE AGREEMENT

The parties agree that it shall be a condition of employment for all teachers employed in the Harbor Beach School District to either:

Buttling Ang

8 2.

- A. Sign and deliver to the Board an assignment authorizing deduction of membership dues of the Association and its affiliates, or pay such dues in one lump sum payment by October 1 of each year, or,
- B. Cause to be paid a non-member representation fee as established by the Association in one lump sum by October 1 of each year, or by authorized payroll deduction as provided to members of the Association.
- C. The procedure in cases of non-compliance with the above provision shall be as follows:
 - 1. The Association shall notify the bargaining unit member of non-compliance by certified mail, with return receipt requested, explaining that he/she is delinquent in tendering the service fee, specifying the current amount of the delinquency, and warning him/her that unless the delinquent service fees are paid or a properly executed deduction form is tendered within fourteen days, he/she shall be reported to the School and a deduction of the service fee shall be made from his/her salary pursuant to Act 390 of the Public Acts of 1978.
 - 2. If the bargaining unit member fails to comply, the Association shall give a copy of the letter sent to the delinquent bargaining unit member and the following written notice to the School at the end of the fourteen-day period:

"The Association certifies that <u>name</u> has failed to tender the periodic service fee required as a condition of employment under the current Master Agreement and demands that, under the terms of the Master Agreement, the School deduct the delinquent service fees from the collective bargaining unit member's salary. The Association certifies that the amount of the service fee includes only local, regional, state, and national dues as authorized by law."

3. The School, upon receipt of said notice and request for deduction, shall act pursuant to the above. In the event of compliance at any time prior to deduction, the request for deduction will be withdrawn. The Association, in enforcing this provision, agrees not to discriminate between bargaining unit members. No employee will be terminated during the pendency of any appeal relative to the level of service fees. To the extent permitted by law, the District will continue to deduct

from the above employee's wages, the representative fee, while employed by the District.

- D. With respect to all sums deducted by the Board pursuant to this Article, the Board agrees promptly to disburse said sums directly to the Association.
- E. The Association agrees to reimburse any teacher for the amount of any dues deducted by the Board and paid to the Association when such deduction is in excess of the proper amount.
- F. The Association agrees to indemnify and save the Board, including each individual Board member, harmless against any and all claims, demands, costs, suits or other forms of liability including back pay and court or administrative agency costs that may arise out of or by reason of action taken by the Board for the purpose of complying with this Article of the Master Agreement. At no time will the District incur any cost in defending litigation arising out of Article II (Membership Fees, Payroll Deductions, and Fair Share Agreements).
 - 1. The Association has the right to choose the legal counsel to defend any such suit or action, after consultation with the Board.
 - 2. The Association, in defense of any such suit, after consultation with the Board, has the right to decide whether to defend any said action or whether or not to appeal the decision of any court or other tribunal regarding the validity of this Article.
 - 3. The Association, in defense of any such suit, shall have the right to compromise or settle any monetary claim made against the Board, or its individual members, after consultation with the Board.

ARTICLE III - BOARD RIGHTS

A. The Board on its own behalf and on the behalf of the electors of the district, hereby retains and reserves unto itself all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in its by the laws and Constitution of the State of Michigan, and of the United States, including but without limiting, the generality of the foregoing, including the right to discipline or discharge for just and reasonable cause:

- 1. To the executive management and administrative control of the school system and its properties and facilities, and the activities of its employees specifically related to the job.
- 2. To hire all employees and, subject to the provisions of law, determine their qualifications, and the conditions for their continued employment, or their dismissal or demotion; to promote, and transfer all such employees.
- 3. To establish grades and courses of instruction, including special programs, and to provide for athletic, recreational, and social events for students, all as deemed necessary or advisable by the Board.
- 4. To decide the course of study and the selection of textbooks.

 The Board welcomes input from professional educators relative to curriculum and textbook selection. All textbooks receiving final Board approval will be evaluated by appropriate professional staff. The staff will make a recommendation following a review process to the Superintendent.
- 5. To determine class schedules, and the duties, responsibilities, and assignments of teachers will respect thereto.
- B. The exercise of the foregoing powers, right, authority, duties and responsibilities by the Board, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations, and practices in furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this Agreement and then only to the extent such specific and express terms hereof are in conformance with the Constitution and law of the State of Michigan and the Constitution and laws of the United States.
- C. Nothing contained herein shall be considered to deny or restrict the Board of its rights, responsibilities, and authority under the Michigan General School Laws or any other national, state, county, district, or local laws or regulations as they pertain to education.
- D. The Board wishes to work with its professional staff in a spirit of cooperation for the benefit of student achievement and will consult with said staff on matters relative to curriculum, schedules and teaching assignments.

ARTICLE IV - TEACHER RIGHTS

- A. The Association and its members shall have the right to use the school building facilities for Association meetings. Scheduling of such meetings will be made through the Superintendent's office at the beginning of the school year; arrangements for any special meetings or changes in regular meetings will be made in writing at least 48 hours in advance. The Association agrees that neither it nor any of its officers or members will engage in any Association meetings during normal teaching hours. Bulletin boards and other established media of communication shall be made available to the Association and its members.
- B. The Board agrees to make available in response to written requests information concerning the financial resources of the district. The Board shall have no responsibility to research or compile any information not on a currently maintained form for the Association. Pertinent available information which may be necessary for the Association to process specific grievances or complaints will be provided upon written request. Agendas, including minutes of Board meetings will be delivered to the President of the Association at the same time they are delivered to members of the Board. A mutually agreeable process for delivery of the minutes to the President of the Association will be worked out with the Superintendent.
- C. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny or restrict to any teacher rights he/she may have under the Michigan General School Laws.
- D. A teacher shall at all times be entitled to have present a representative of the Association prior to being disciplined for any infraction of discipline or delinquency in professional performance. When a request for such representation is made, no action shall be taken with respect to the teacher until such a representative of the Association is present.
- E. No teacher shall be disciplined (including warnings, reprimands, suspensions, reductions in rank, discharges, or other actions of a disciplinary nature) without just cause.
- F. No material will be placed in his/her personnel file unless the teacher has had an opportunity to review and sign the material. Such signature shall be understood to indicate his/her awareness of the material, but in no instance shall said signature be interpreted to mean agreement with the content of the material.

G. Duly authorized representatives of the Association shall be permitted to transact official Association business on school property, provided such representatives who are not employees of the Harbor Beach Schools shall comply with building access procedures established for the public. The transaction of such business by Association representatives, whether employees of the district or not, shall not interrupt or interfere with normal school operations.

ARTICLE V - TEACHERS EMPLOYMENT AND DUTIES

- A. Each teacher agrees to perform the duties assigned of the teacher by law and to carry out the educational program and policies of the Board. The teacher is subject to assignment and transfer at the discretion of the Superintendent of Schools, except as limited by the terms of this agreement. Temporary assignments of teachers may be made by the building principal in cases of unforeseen emergencies provided that such assignments are necessary.
- В. Written notices of all vacancies in the bargaining unit will be posted in the office of the Superintendent, Elementary, Middle School and High School offices, and a copy forwarded to the Association president. A teacher may apply for any vacancy in the bargaining unit at any time. Such application must be in writing, addressed to the Superintendent of Schools. Applications will be considered should such vacancy occur, either during the school year or during the summer. The vacancy shall be filled by a highly qualified applicant in accordance with the provisions of No Child Left Behind with the greatest seniority in the bargaining unit. If there is no highly qualified applicant within the bargaining unit the Board may hire from outside the unit. Vacancies which occur after August 15 may be filled without posting. Should these positions exist for the following year, they will be declared vacant and posted. The Administration will notify the Association President in writing of such vacancies and who is assigned. The decision of the Board as to the filling of such vacancies shall be final.
- C. Requests by a teacher for transfer to a different class, building, or position shall be made in writing, on forms furnished by the Board, one copy of which shall be filed with the superintendent and one copy with the Association. The Application shall set forth the reasons for transfer, the school, grade or position sought and the applicant's academic qualifications.
- D. Teachers who will be affected by a change in grade assignments in the elementary school and by changes in subject assignment in the secondary school grades will be consulted by their principal as soon as

practicable and will be given preliminary notification of their assignments by June 30th. After consideration of necessary summer staff changes, teachers will be given final assignments by July 31st. Changes thereafter will be made only in cases of emergency. Resignation of a teacher, unexpected change in enrollment and defeat of a millage are examples of emergencies. The Association will be notified of all such changes. Such changes will be voluntary to the extent possible. The most senior staff will be consulted first in these circumstances and will have first opportunity to fill these openings providing they meet the highly qualified criteria as defined in No child Left Behind. Every effort will be made to avoid reassigning probationary teachers to different assignments unless the teacher requests such changes.

- E. Bargaining unit members will be notified by mail of any vacancies that occur during the summer vacation, provided the member has notified the building principal, in writing, by indicating his/her interest on the District provided form at the end of the school year.
- F. Should the State of Michigan's definition of highly qualified changes, it is understood those same changes shall be reflected in this Agreement. Should No Child Left Behind be rescinded, the practices relating to qualified and certified teachers shall revert to the 2003-2005 Master Agreement.
- G. Bargaining unit members will not be assigned a student teacher without their approval.

ARTICLE VI - TEACHING HOURS

- A. The yearly instructional hours shall be in compliance with the most recent State of Michigan hourly instructional requirement. If the hourly requirement is achievable in fewer than 180 days and in compliance with the state of Michigan requirements, there shall be no restoration of number of days to equal 180. The teacher's normal teaching hours in the elementary and secondary schools shall be as follows:
 - 1. Instructional day at the elementary begins at 8:00. Students may enter the building at 7:55 a.m. Teachers will be at their assigned place of duty not later than 7:55 a.m. and in the building no later than 7:50 a.m. Teachers shall leave school no earlier than 3:15 p.m.

- 2. The instructional day for the middle school and high school begins at 8:05 a.m. Teachers will be at their assigned place of duty not later than 8:00 a.m. High school teachers shall leave school no earlier than 3:10 p.m. and middle school teachers shall leave school no earlier than 3:15 p.m.
- 3. In the event that the State mandated hours of instruction change during the time frame of this Agreement, it is mutually understood that:

Teachers are to be at their duty post at least five (5) minutes prior to the start of school and at least ten (10) minutes after the completion of the student day.

These hours are established so we can meet the requirements of the State with a minimum of twenty (20) hours cushion built into the schedule.

- 4. Faculty members are required to attend regularly scheduled faculty meetings each month. These meetings may consist of two (2) meetings not to exceed 45 minutes each beyond the teacher dismissal time.
- 5. Building administrators will provide agendas for regularly scheduled staff meetings to the staff at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. (Agendas are subject to change when necessary.)
- 6. Teachers may have their workday adjusted by the Principal (within the limits dictated by the prescribed Student Day) upon a teacher's request for the purpose of accommodating regularly reoccurring activities such as college classes or community service. The total teacher workday shall be as prescribed by the limits set forth in subsections 1 and 2 above. If any dispute as to the granting of said adjustment exists, the Superintendent shall make the final determination as to the granting of the request.
- B. All teachers shall be entitled to a duty-free uninterrupted lunch period of at least 30 minutes.
- C. When classes are cancelled in an individual school, teachers may be used as substitutes, carry out observation visits or participate in inservice activities. There shall be 180 days of student instruction and 185 teacher days. Should Act of God days cause a loss of student instruction hours to a point where the hours must be made up as per School Code, the instruction hours will be made up with the following understanding:

- 1. The parties agree to meet in an effort to mutually agree on when any make up days should occur. In the event they are unable to agree, the days will be added on to the end of the calendar.
- 2. Should a day be rescheduled and insufficient students attend to count it as a day of instruction, teachers will not be obligated to attend a subsequent rescheduling of the day without being paid at their daily rate.
- 3. It is understood and agreed that in the event that the rescheduling of the days at the end of the school year interferes with a teacher's scheduled return to upgrade his/her skills, the teacher may use his/her personal/sick leave or at his/her discretion apply for unpaid leave time to cover any lost time.
- 4. Should the provisions of the state law be rescinded, the above provisions shall be considered null and void and the provisions and practices in existence prior to this agreement shall be reinstated to the extent permitted by law.

ARTICLE VII - TEACHING LOADS AND ASSIGNMENTS

- A. All middle school instructors will be granted one (1) preparation period equal to the normal instructional period. When the middle school concept of teaming is in place, those staff members involved in the instructional teams will be granted a teaming period equal to the length of a normal instructional period. (If no middle school concept is in place the middle school staff will have the same schedule as the high school: one preparation period in the course of a seven period day.)
- B. Elementary instructors will be granted a minimum of 150 minutes of blocked preparation time during a five-day week. This time will occur during the normal student instructional day. This time will be broken down into five (5) thirty (30) minute segments per week. Any elementary instructor not receiving preparation time during the morning or afternoon schedule may request a designated administrator to relieve them from their duties for a period of time needed to use the restroom facilities. This time is not to be included in their preparation time. In addition, elementary instructors will be granted a minimum of seven (7) half-day planning sessions per year to plan as grade area teams.

- C. Fifth (5th) and sixth (6th) grade teachers will be notified at the beginning of each school year as to their status of middle school or elementary instructor. They will then have the rights and privileges provided in this contract for that classification for the current school year.
- D. All high school instructors will be granted one (1) preparation period per day equal to the normal instructional period. (This is based on a seven period day.)
- E. Preparation time will be honored according to a normal school day. In the event of a shortened instructional day, preparation time may be eliminated for that day due to the structure of the day. Deviations of conditions in sections A, B, or C above shall be processed through the normal grievance negotiation procedure hereinafter set forth.
- F. Since pupils are entitled to be taught by teachers who are working within their area of competence, teachers shall not be assigned outside the scope of their teaching certificates or their major or minor field of study, except temporarily for a maximum time of one semester, for good cause, nor without the teacher's voluntary written consent.
- G. All class activities and assemblies during the school day shall be part of the teachers' responsibility.
- H. Teachers are expected to help supervise during the students' day except during duty free time which would include lunch break, recess and preparation time.

ARTICLE VIII - TEACHING CONDITIONS

A. Because the pupil-teacher ratio is an important aspect of an effective educational program, the Board agrees that it will make a reasonable effort to stay within the maximum class sizes set forth; subject to the availability of facilities and financial resources.

1. <u>ELEMENTARY</u>

Kindergarten and 1st grade	20 pupils
2nd and 3 rd grade	25 minils
4 th through 6 th grade	28 pupils
Split Classes	25 pupils

^{*}Pupils within split classrooms must consist of consecutive grades. Teachers assigned to these classrooms will receive an additional thirty (30) minute preparation period per week.

Special Education class limits are determined by State Law.

2. SECONDARY

English, Social Studies, General Education,	
Mathematics, Science, Language, Business	28 pupils
Typing, Drafting	30 pupils
Industrial Arts, Homemaking	20 pupils
Art, Health Education	25 pupils
Physical Education	40 pupils
Music	35 pupils
Band1200	pupils/week

- B. When assigning special needs students (those with 504 plans) to regular classrooms, the Board will exercise special consideration and attempt, where possible, to equally distribute such students among the affected classrooms. Where special education students (those with IEP's) are mainstreamed into the regular classroom, the number of mainstreamed students shall be evenly distributed among the regular classrooms. Exceptions to this restriction may be made on an individual basis.
- C. As soon as possible, but no later than the third Monday in September and the beginning of the second semester in January, any class size exceeding the maximums specified above shall be brought to the attention of the association. At this time, the District, after consultation with the affected teacher and the Association, will implement one or a combination of the following alternatives:
 - 1. Hiring additional teachers;
 - 2. Creation of a combined grade classroom;
 - 3. Additional prep blocks per week
 - 4. Full time trained paraprofessional to work with students;
 - 5. Increased supply budget

Contraction

- 6. Extra (compensated) work days for planning, grading, etc.;
- 7. Substitutes for the classroom so that the extra Parent-Teacher conference time can be made available;
- 8. Any other solution that is mutually agreeable to the District, the affected teacher, and the Association.
- D. Combination classes in the Middle or High School will consist of only related courses and will be offered only with the permission of the instructor involved. Related courses shall be defined as those using the same lesson plan with more detailed work required of advanced students.

- E. Teachers will not be required to handle safety patrol duty or bus duty. Duplicating of teaching materials will be encouraged to be completed by the instructor, but in emergencies the office staff will assist. Copy machines will be placed in a secured area allowing teachers to have after-hour access.
- F. The Board and the Association will contribute equally to a fund which will be used to purchase teacher reference material. This material will be available to all members of the staff and will be located in a special section of the Instructional Learning Center in each building. No later than December 1 of each school year, the parties shall each contribute at least twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) to the fund to be used for materials upon which the parties have mutually agreed. If the parties do not expend all of the available monies contributed to the fund by the end of the school year, the remaining balance shall be carried forward for use in the subsequent school year.

G. The Board shall provide:

- 1. A separate desk for each teacher and lockable storage space.
- 2. Suitable closet space for each teacher to store coats, overshoes and personal articles.
- 3. At the beginning of each school year one laboratory coat will be issued to each teacher of shop and laboratory science. These coats will be maintained by the teacher to whom issued and at the end of the year they are to be returned to the office of the principal.
- H. Whenever, according to school programs, teachers take students off campus, the Board shall make provisions to assist teachers with enforcing school policy including the availability of cell phones.

ARTICLE IX - PAID LEAVE

A. All full time employees shall receive ten days of sick leave per year. Unused days each year shall be accumulative to one hundred (100) days. In case of the return to duty of a teacher who has been absent for more than ten (10) days due to an extended illness, he must present a statement from his physician if requested. When abuse of sick leave is suspected, based on reliable information, a medical statement or certification may be required of a teacher at the discretion of the Superintendent. The teacher has the right to request and receive from whom the information was obtained. Once information is verified, the teacher will be put on notice for the remainder of the school year and

any further occurrences during the school year may be questioned and may result in disciplinary action.

An advanced credit of leave days shall be granted each teacher each year at the above rate. In the event a teacher leaves the school system during the school year and has used unearned advanced leave credit, a proportionate deduction, equal to the teacher's daily pay rate times the number of such days, shall be made from the teacher's final pay.

- B. Leaves of absence with pay chargeable against the teacher's accumulated sick pay allowance shall be granted for the following reason:
 - 1. Sick leave will apply to a sickness of the individual teacher. It will also apply to his immediate family when warranted in the opinion of the Administration. Immediate family is defined as: fathers, mothers, husbands, wives, sisters, brothers, individual's children, father-in-law, mother-in-law, and persons who stand in stead of immediate family.
 - 2. Beginning with the 2000-2001 school year, an employee who has accumulated the maximum 100 days in their individual sick bank shall be compensated at a rate of \$25.00 for any days granted in that current year, but not used. The maximum allowable payment will be \$300.00; payment will be made no later than June 30 of a given year. Beginning with the 2001-2002 school year, an employee who has accumulated the maximum of 100 days in their individual sick bank shall be compensated at a rate of \$40.00 for any days granted in that current year, but not used. The maximum allowable payment will be \$480.00; payment will be made no later than June 30 of a given year.
- C. Leaves of absence with pay not chargeable against the teacher's allowance shall be granted for the following reasons:
 - 1. A maximum of five days per occurrence for a death in immediate family. A maximum of two (2) days per school year will be allowed to attend the funeral of a grandparent of a teacher or a teacher's spouse. An additional sick day may be used to attend the funeral of the grandparent of a teacher or the teacher's spouse.
 - 2. Absence when a teacher is called for jury service. Effective July 1, 1979, any wages less personal expenses received for jury duty will be deducted from the teacher's per diem rate.

- 3. Court appearance as a witness in any case connected with the teacher's employment in this school system or whenever the teacher is subpoenaed to attend any proceeding when warranted by the administration, the Board would pay the difference between the teacher's salary and the court compensation.
- 4. Time necessary to take the selective service physical examination upon the approval of the administration.
- 5. The parties agree that there may be conditions or circumstances which may require teacher absenteeism for other reasons than heretofore mentioned. Therefore, two days will be allowed for the purpose of conducting business which is impossible to transact during non-teaching hours. It will not involve other business interests nor will it be used for shopping, recreation, etc. Teachers desiring to use such leave shall submit their request on the application form (see Appendix C) provided by the Board at least two (2) working days in advance of the absence except in cases of emergency. In such case the teacher will apply as soon as possible. This form must be filed with the building or immediate supervisor. Leave shall not be granted for the first or last day of the school year nor on the first working days preceding or following a vacation period or holiday except at the discretion of the Superintendent. A sick day may be used as an additional business day, at the discretion of the Superintendent. Unused business days will be added to accumulated sick leave. (The discretionary awarding of additional personal business days or the awarding of these days prior to or after a vacation will be viewed on an individual basis and will not set a precedent for future requests.) Teachers shall not be granted pre-arranged personal days during scheduled professional development days or parent-teacher conferences without the prior approval of the Superintendent of Schools, Building Principal and notification to the Union President.
- D. Any teacher who is absent because of an injury or disease compensable under the Michigan Worker's Compensation Law, shall receive from the Board the difference between the allowance under the Worker's Compensation day and his regular salary for the remainder of his contract starting from the date of injury or illness with no subtraction of sick leave.
- E. The Board will allow Association representatives time off during the normal school year not to exceed ten (10) teacher days per year to attend Michigan and/or National Education Association workshops,

conferences, conventions and other activities not covered by Article XIX, Section E. Expenses incurred by the Association representatives during the time off will not be paid by the Board. The Association further agrees to pay all substitutes for these days. The determination of the need for and the selection of substitutes required for the time off rests solely with the Administration. Such time off shall be granted upon written request at least one week prior to the actual time off and providing a qualified replacement can be obtained.

ARTICLE X - LEAVES OF ABSENCE

A. Any teacher whose personal illness extends beyond a period compensated under Article IX shall be granted a leave of absence without pay up to one year. Upon return from leave, a teacher shall be assigned to the same position or substantially equivalent position as soon as available. The Board may require such teacher to receive approval from a physician chosen from a list of physicians designated by the Superintendent of Schools or the Board. The Board will pay the cost of physical exams which are requested by the Board prior to return to work.

B. Maternity and Child Care Leave

- 1. Maternity Leave without pay shall be granted to any member of the bargaining unit who becomes pregnant. Such leave shall begin at such time, during the course of pregnancy, as determined by her doctor and shall continue for the duration of pregnancy and post- partum recovery at which time the teacher shall return to her duties or commence an unpaid child care leave as provided below, or
- 2. Any pregnant teacher who continues to perform her duties until she becomes physically disabled by her pregnancy or child birth shall be entitled to utilize her accumulated sick leave for the period of disability caused by a pregnancy or child birth under the terms of Article IX (A). Should accumulated sick leave be exhausted prior to recovery from such disability, the teacher will be placed on unpaid "personal illness" leave as provided in Section A of this Article.
- 3. A child care leave without pay shall be granted to any member of the bargaining unit. In the case of pregnant women, the child care leave shall commence at the conclusion of the maternity

leave provided in #1 above or the conclusion of the period of disability should the teacher elect to utilize paid sick leave.

- a. If the birth of the child occurs before the end of the first semester, the child care leave shall be for the remainder of the school year, or
- b. If the birth of the child occurs during the second semester, the child care leave shall be up to one year plus the balance of that semester.
- c. Return will be made only at the beginning of a semester, unless a staff vacancy occurs earlier and she is qualified to fill that position.
- d. Other circumstances which warrant earlier reemployment may occur and these will be considered as they occur.
- e. She will be reemployed whether she is a probationary or tenure teacher, provided she signifies during the first week of the leave that she intends to return.
- 4. Teachers who anticipate a long-term absence due to disability shall:
 - a. Notify in writing, whenever possible, the building principal sixty (60) days in advance of the anticipated onset of the disability (e.g. childbirth, elective surgery, prostatectomy) and the projected duration of the absence.
 - b. When requested by the administration, provide a statement from the teacher's attending physician that the teacher is medically able to continue or resume the teacher's normal job responsibilities.
- C. Teachers who are officers of the United Profession Association and its departments, or are appointed to its staff, may upon proper application be given leave of absence without pay for the purpose of performing duties for the United Profession Association and its department.
- D. Military leaves of absence shall be granted to any teacher who shall serve with the Armed Forces of the United States for military duty. Teachers during first 24 months of military leave shall be given the benefit of any increments which would have been credited to them had

they remained in active service to the school system. Such credits will be awarded beyond 24 months only to those teachers who are required to stay in the military service on a non-voluntary basis.

E. An unpaid leave of absence for advanced study may be requested for a limit of one school year, on or before February 1, of the preceding school year. Each request must be submitted to the Superintendent in writing, outlining a formal program of work which will qualify the applicant for a higher credential in his profession or a program of recognized courses relating to the present or prospective service of the applicant. Applications for this type of leave will be considered on their merits and may be approved by the Board of Education upon recommendation of the Superintendent. Teachers requesting such leave will be notified by April 1 of the status of the leave.

Approval of a leave of absence for advanced study shall be contingent on the following conditions:

- 1. No more than one teacher in the district shall be granted leave at any one time.
- 2. Applicant must be a Tenure Teacher, four (4) years of continuous teaching experience in the district and the holder of a permanent or a continuing Michigan Teaching Certificate.
- 3. A qualified certificated replacement must be available to assume the applicant's duties while on leave.
- 4. Must return to the school system for a minimum of one year after return from leave.
- 5. Reemployment will only be made at the beginning of the school year. Upon return from advanced study leave, the teacher shall be entitled to advance one increment on the salary schedule providing all requirements of the leave policy have been fulfilled satisfactorily in the judgment of the Superintendent.

Staff member will not accrue any other benefits except increment credit while on leave and will be responsible for all other health or disability premiums due.

F. An employee may make a request in writing to the Superintendent of Schools and upon his approval be granted a leave of absence without pay for a purpose not specified in the above leave of absence. This request must indicate the reason for the leave of absence and only will

be honored if a qualified substitute teacher, or teacher on layoff or being laid off, is available.

ARTICLE XI - INSURANCE PROTECTION

- A. The Board will provide MESSA Choices II and MESSA Preferred Prescription Program (\$5/\$10 co-pay) for the teacher and his/her eligible dependents (see paragraph N.) The premiums will be fully paid in 2005-2006.
- B. Long Term Disability The Board will pay the full monthly premium for a Long Term Disability Policy with a three (3) month qualifying period with a guarantee of sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66 2/3%) of the monthly salary up to a maximum benefit of \$3,000 per month. Benefits shall be paid to these members, who as of the effective date of this Contract, have accumulated 74 days or less at the above rate. Those members who as of the effective date of this contract have an accumulated sick leave of 75 to 90 days, may, beginning with the 75th day take payment based on the current LTD policy and retain any accumulated sick leave between the 75th and 90th day. Benefit payments shall continue to age sixty-five (65) or until termination of disability whichever occurs first.
- C. The Board of Education will pay the premium cost of a \$45,000 Term Life Insurance Policy with accidental death and dismemberment rider for each teacher employed by the School District.
- D. Teachers not electing health insurance coverage through the school shall apply up to the amount of the MESSA Choices II single subscriber premium toward the MESSA Fixed Option programs (with the exception of automobile insurance). Any remaining dollars shall be applied on an individual basis to purchase any of the MESSA Variable Options or may be contributed toward similar programs for which payroll deductions were made as of July 1, 1980.
- E. The Board will provide without cost to the teachers a 80/80/80/80 Delta Dental plan with a \$2000 lifetime orthodontic maximum and \$1800 yearly maximum for Class I, II, and III, for all members of the bargaining unit and their eligible dependents
- F. The Board will pay the premium for the MESSA VSP 3 Plus Vision program for all bargaining unit members and their eligible dependents.

- G. All insurance coverages provided under this article shall, in all respects, become effective only upon yearly submission of written application by the bargaining unit member and acceptance by the insurance carrier.
- H. It is expressly understood that the Board is only responsible for providing premiums toward insurance coverage. The Board agrees to provide the above mentioned benefit programs within the underwriting rules and regulations as set forth by the carrier(s) in the Master Contract held by the policyholder.
- I. Employees newly hired by the Board shall be eligible for Board paid insurance premiums upon acceptance of written application by the insurance carriers on the first day of the month following the month work commenced.
- J. To be eligible for the above coverage (or increase in coverage) employees must be able to perform the "at work requirements" with this employer before benefits are effective.
- K. Changes in family status shall be reported by the employee to the business office within thirty (30) days of such change. The employee shall be responsible for any overpayment/underpayment of premiums made by the Board in his/her behalf for failure to comply with this paragraph.
- L. Employees working less than a full contract year shall have benefits terminated on the first day of the month following termination of employment provided, however, that any teacher who works through May 30 will receive benefits through the summer.
- M. With new regulations from the carrier on the administration of Short Term Disability Insurance it is hereby agreed between the Harbor Beach Board of Education and the Tri-County Bargaining Association that:
 - 1. Association members may still use option dollars to purchase STD Insurance;
 - 2. Association members with STD Insurance may at their option freeze the use of sick leave and use STD Insurance when the qualifying period is met;
 - 3. While an Association member is on a STD Insurance covered leave they will follow the same reporting procedures as anyone using regular sick leave;

- 4. Any member while on sick leave covered by STD Insurance shall continue to accrue all rights covered in the Master Agreement.
- N. Prior to July 1 of each Contract year, the parties shall meet to compare the cost of providing the benefits set forth above with a MESSA PAK. If said PAK is within the cost of the benefits contained in this Article, the Association shall have the option of converting coverage to MESSA PAK for the following Contract year, subject to a similar review prior to July 1 of the following year.

Note: Insurance changes require 30-day notice to MESSA for implementation.

O. The premium for MESSA Choices II will be paid in full for the 2005-2006 school year. The cap for the 2006-2007 school year is 15% with the following provision to address any increase from 15% to 20% to be paid from the fund described herein.

The teacher will not have to pay any increase in premium for the first 20% increase in premium for the 2006-2007 school year providing the formula defined has sufficient funds and offset any increase above 15% but not more than 20% for said year.

In 2007-2008 the Board agrees to pay the first 15% in insurance premiums over the previous year's rate based on MESSA Area A health premium rates. If Area A health insurance premiums increase more than 15%, the percentage of raise in salary will be reduced by 0.02% for each percentage of overage in premium cost beyond 15%.

- P. It is hereby agreed between the association and the Board that the following terms and conditions shall govern the savings in each year of this Agreement as it applies to the Districts participation in MESSA Choices II Health Insurance.
 - 1. Any savings generated or realized by the District as a result of converting to MESSA Choices II health insurance shall be held in an escrow account for the purpose of offsetting any premium increase above 15% in any year of this Agreement.
 - 2. In each year of this Agreement the District shall calculate the difference in the increase in premium from one year to the next for MESSA Super Care I and MESSA Choices II. The difference shall be deposited in a designated account for the specific purpose of subsidizing any increase in health insurance premium in excess of 15%. The amount designated shall not

exceed the amount necessary to cover an increase of 5% beyond the 15% on the health care premium.

- 3. This provision shall be in effect for the life of this Agreement.

 The Board shall determine when it is practicable to implement this provision. All financial data shall be subject to audit which shall comply with all generally accepted accounting principles.
- 4. The Board or it's designee(s) shall confer from time to time with representatives of the Association in order to evaluate the cost of health care premium and any increases that may occur. The Association and the Board shall meet to confer on the need to implement said provision.
- 5. The initial transition form Super Care I to Choices II shall serve as the base year of savings i.e. from Super Care I to choices II in (2005-2006) the savings from this transition shall serve as the base amount to establish the designated account.

ARTICLE XII - TEACHER EVALUATION

A. Evaluation of the effectiveness of teaching is an important function of the Administration. Without knowledge of the strength and weaknesses of the existing practices, guidance cannot bring about a maximum of improvement.

Evaluation, if it is to serve both a guidance and a rating function, must be a cooperative process. This means the teachers should familiarize themselves with the items listed. This will serve the dual purpose of keeping before the teacher the objectives expected to be achieved and will provide an excellent basis for self-evaluation.

- B. The main purposes of evaluation:
 - 1. To insure the best education possible for all students through stimulating growth and development of the professional staff.
 - 2. To improve communication between teachers and administrators.
 - 3. To evaluate teachers so that they may be assigned, continued on probation, placed on tenure, transferred, promoted or in some cases discharged.

C. The instrument (See Appendix B) is intended to remind the teacher and the evaluator of the importance of the many different teaching skills. It provides a basis for specific comments and discussions of strengths and weaknesses and suggests ideas for the future growth as well as encourages the development of specific ideas and plans for the present. The evaluation is the formal report for the evaluator and will be filed permanently in the teacher's personnel file. The instrument may be used as a preliminary self-appraisal if the teacher so desires.

The parties agree that the teacher evaluation instrument shall be reviewed annually by two (2) administrators and two (2) Association members who shall present recommendations for change to the Superintendent and the Association no later than October 1 of each school year for their approval. If no recommendation is made or mutually agreed to, the previous year's evaluation instrument will be utilized.

D. The following evaluation procedures will be followed:

ALL EVALUATIONS

- 1. Evaluation visits to the classroom will last a minimum of twenty (20) minutes.
- 2. All post observation conferences will occur within five (5) working days or at a mutually agreeable date which will be chosen within those 5 working days. Failure to mutually agree to a conference date within 5 working days of the evaluation shall not invalidate the evaluation. This formal evaluation will be followed up by a conference with the administrator, teacher, and mentor (in the case of probationary teacher). At the conclusion of the conference, the teacher, administrator, and mentor will sign the form verifying that a conference has been held; this signature does not imply agreement with the contents of the evaluation. The teacher shall have the right to add his or her comments to the evaluation. Such comments will be permanently attached to the form.
- 3. Teachers are subject to evaluation at any time during their classroom teaching periods. All monitoring and observation of the work performance of a teacher shall be conducted openly and with full knowledge of the teacher. The use of eavesdropping, closed circuit television, public address or audio systems surveillance devices shall be strictly prohibited.

FIRST YEAR OF PROBATION (PHASE I)

- During the first week of school all first year teachers, including transfers, will be assigned a Teacher-Mentor by the administrator in consultation with the Association President. (See teacher Handbook for duties of Mentor). (Subsequent weeks of school shall be measured by determining the number of days that students have been in session and dividing by five (5), i.e., after twenty-five student attendance days have elapsed, it is the end of the fifth week.)
- 2. By the end of the third week an IDP shall be mutually developed between the principal, teacher, and mentor teacher.
- 3. By the end of the fifth week, the first formal observation by the Administrator will take place.
- 4. By the end of the fifteenth week, a second formal observation will take place.
- 5. By the end of the twenty-seventh week, a final annual evaluation report will be completed.
- 6. By the end of the thirtieth week, the teacher and the Association President will be informed of the recommendation of the administrator.
- 7. The above procedure includes a minimum of two visits to the classroom. Teacher-Mentor will be present at all evaluation conferences.

SECOND YEAR AND OTHER YEARS OF PROBATION (PHASE

I)

- 1. A Teacher-Mentor will be appointed during the first week of school as per first year probation.
- 2. By the end of the third week of school the IDP shall be updated between the parties.
- 3. The first formal observation will be completed by the fifteenth week of school.
- 4. The final observation will be completed by the twenty-fourth week.

- 5. By the end of the twenty-seventh week a final annual evaluation will be completed.
- 6. The teacher and Association President will be notified as per first year probation.
- 7. The above procedure includes a minimum of two visits to the classroom. The Teacher-Mentor will be present at all evaluation conferences.

TENURE TEACHERS (PHASE II)

At least one formal observation/evaluation will be made of tenure teachers every other year. The initial formal observation/evaluation will take place after October 15th and before February 1st of that school year.

E. Each teacher shall have the right upon request to review the contents of his/her own Harbor Beach personnel evaluation file.

ARTICLE XIII - PROTECTION OF TEACHERS

- A. Classroom control and discipline is an effective part of the education process. To be effective, the Board recognizes that the teacher will be given adequate support by the Board and the Administration in the discreet handling of student and disciplinary problems.
- B. Any case of assault upon a teacher in connection with the teacher's duties shall be promptly reported to the Board or its designated representative. The Board will provide legal counsel to advise the teacher of his/her rights and obligations with respect to such assault and shall render all reasonable assistance to the teacher in connection with the handling of the incident by law enforcement and judicial authorities.
- C. If any teacher is complained against or sued by reason of disciplinary action taken by the teacher against a student and said disciplinary action is considered reasonable by the Administration, the Board will provide legal counsel and render all necessary assistance to the teacher in his/her defense.
- D. Time lost by a teacher in connection with an incident mentioned in the Article which in the opinion of the Administration is justified shall not be charged against the teacher.

- E. Reimbursement will be made to the teacher for the loss, damage or destruction of clothing or personal property of the teacher while on duty in the school or on the school premises, as approved by the Administration. Personal property must be checked in with the building principal as per the form in Appendix A.
- F. Any complaints by a parent of a student directed toward a teacher shall be promptly called to the teacher's attention.

ARTICLE XIV - NEGOTIATION PROCEDURES

- A. At least ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of this Agreement, the parties will begin negotiations for a new agreement covering wages, hours, terms and conditions of employment of teachers employed by the Board.
- B. Teachers shall be released from their normal duties for the purpose of actively participating in negotiations or grievance meetings with the Board when there is agreement that such activities occur during a scheduled teacher work day or when the parties are directed by an agency or court of proper authority to participate in such activities during a scheduled teacher work day. Should fact-finding occur during the school day, up to three representatives of the Association shall be released from regular duties for the purpose of actively participating in the fact-finding proceeding. There shall be no loss of pay for participation in negotiations, grievance processing, or fact-finding consistent with the provisions of this section.

ARTICLE XV - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

A grievance is defined as an alleged violation, an application, interpretation or administration of a specific article or section of the Agreement. If any such grievance arises, there shall be no stoppage or suspension of work because of such grievance; but such grievance shall be submitted to the following grievance and arbitration procedures.

The teacher or the teacher and the Association Representative shall be encouraged to discuss complaints with the building principal before using the grievance procedure. The complaint shall not become a matter of record.

Should a difference arise between a teacher and the Administration as to the meaning and application of this Agreement, an earnest effort shall be made to settle such difference, grievance or dispute in the following manner:

A. Any individual teacher or the Association having a grievance involving action by the building principal shall take the matter up directly with that principal within five (5) days of the alleged incident and may reach a settlement of the grievance as long as the settlement is not inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement.

In an instance where a grievance arises from the action of the Superintendent or Board, or involves more than one school, the Association shall begin processing that matter at the Superintendent's level of this grievance procedure. When a grievance is filed pursuant to this paragraph the Association shall take the matter up with the Superintendent within five (5) days of the action being grieved in an effort to settle the grievance. If a settlement is not reached within the foregoing time, the Association shall submit the grievance in writing to the Superintendent within the following five (5) days (not later than ten (10) days after the alleged violation occurred). The Superintendent shall answer a formal grievance within eight (8) days of its submission to him/her, pursuant to this paragraph.

- B. If a satisfactory settlement is not effected within five days after submission, it shall be reduced to writing by the Association and the grievance shall be taken up with the principal within five days.
- C. The principal shall answer the grievance in writing and return it to the Association within five days after he/she received it.
- D. If a satisfactory settlement is not effected, the Association shall submit the written grievance to the superintendent within five days after it was returned by the principal.
- E. The superintendent shall answer the grievance in writing within five days and return it to the Association.
- F. In the event the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved by the superintendent or if no decision is reached within the thirty day period, the written grievance shall be submitted to the Secretary of the Board of Education. The Board shall answer said grievance in writing and provide a hearing upon request, within thirty days after it has been received.
- G. In cases where it is impossible to effect the settlement of a grievance pertaining to the meaning or application of the provisions of this agreement, either the Board or the Association may invoke arbitration of the issue in accordance with the following procedure:

Notify the other party within thirty days of receipt of the disposition in Section F of intent to submit issue to arbitration. Following such notification, the parties shall attempt to select an arbitrator to arbitrate the disputed issue.

- H. In event the Board and the Association have not selected an arbitrator within ten days of the date of notification of intent to arbitrate or within such other period of time as may be mutually agreed upon an arbitrator shall be selected in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association. Regardless of how selected, the arbitrator will conduct the arbitration in accordance with the rules, regulations and procedures of the American Arbitration Association.
- I. The time limits specified in the grievance procedure shall be binding unless an extension of such limits is mutually agreed upon. It is understood that Saturdays, Sundays and holidays are excluded in the determination of the time limits specified in this article.
- J. The Board of Education and the Association shall not be permitted to introduce any new evidence after the grievance has proceeded through step F.
- K. It shall be the function of the arbitrator, and he/she shall be empowered, except his/her powers are limited below, after due investigation to make a decision in cases of alleged violation of the specific articles and sections of this agreement.
 - 1. He/she shall have no power to add to, subtract from, disregard, alter or modify any of the terms of this agreement.
 - 2. He/she shall have no power to establish salary scales or change any schedule salary.
 - 3. He/she shall have no power to rule on any of the following:
 - a. The placing of a non-tenure teacher on a third year of probation.
 - b. The termination of services or failure to reemploy any teacher to a position on the extra-curricular schedule.
 - c. Any claim or complaint for which there is another remedial procedure or forum established by law or a regulation having the force of law, including any matter subject to the procedures specified in the Teacher Tenure Act.
 - d. Any matter involving teacher evaluation results.

- 4. He/she shall have no power to change any practice, policy or rule of the Board nor to substitute his/her judgment for that of the Board, providing that any such practice, policy, rule or any action taken by the Board is reasonable. His/her powers shall be limited to deciding whether the Board has violated the express articles or sections of this agreement; and he/her shall not imply obligations and conditions in conflict with this agreement, it being understood that any matter not specifically set forth herein remains within the reserved rights of the Board.
- 5. If either party disputes the arbitrability of any grievance under the terms of this agreement, the arbitrator shall determine the arbitrability of the grievance prior to hearing the merits of the grievance.
- 6. There shall be no appeal from an arbitrator's decision if within the scope of this authority as set forth above. It shall be final and binding on the Association, its members, the employee or employees involved and the Board. The Association and the Board shall not encourage any of their members or their agents, in any appeal to any court or labor board from a decision of an arbitrator nor shall the association or its members by any other means attempt to bring about the settlement of any grievance.
- L. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by the Board and the Association. All other expenses shall be borne by the party incurring them and neither party shall be responsible for the expense of witnesses called by the other.
- M. The time limits provided in this Article shall be strictly observed but may be extended by written agreement of the parties. In the event a grievance is filed after May 15 of any year, the Board shall use its best efforts to process such grievance prior to the end of the school term or as soon thereafter as possible.

Not withstanding the expiration of the Agreement, any claim or grievance arising thereunder may be processed through the Grievance Procedure until resolution.

N. In the event a grievance has proceeded through step F and it has not been transmitted to arbitration within thirty (30) days thereafter, unless mutually agreed otherwise such grievance shall be deemed resolved. The Board shall not be required to pay back wages more than ten (10) days prior to the date a written grievance is filed. All claims for back wages shall be limited to the amount of the wages that the employee would otherwise have earned, less any compensation that he may have

received from any source during the period of the back pay. No decision in any one case shall require a retroactive wage adjustment in any other case.

- O. A teacher shall at all times be entitled to have present a representative of the Association prior to being disciplined for any infraction of discipline or delinquency in professional performance. When a request for such representation is made, no action shall be taken with respect to the teacher until such a representative of the Association is present. This does not prevent an administrator from discussing a teacher's evaluation and making constructive criticism in an informal meeting without the Association's representative.
- P. Any adverse disciplinary action not deemed as being justified by the teacher, shall be subject to the grievance procedure.

ARTICLE XVI - SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT

- A. The Board and the Association recognize that the School Instructional Program and related matters need continuing study and improvement. Therefore, both parties agree to work together on a joint, School Improvement Team. (SIT)
- B. The District School Improvement Team shall consist of up to five (5) teacher representatives and up to five (5) administrative representatives, who will be selected by their respective groups. The Superintendent will be one of the administrative representatives. School Improvement Team will also include additional members who shall be drawn from the support staff, the Board of Education, the student body, and the community and will serve as the District-wide Improvement Committee outlined in P.A. 25.
- C. Ad hoc subcommittees shall be established as necessary. One ad hoc committee shall be comprised of the ten (10) teachers and administrators referenced above and shall be referred to as Internal School Improvement Team (I-SIT). This subcommittee shall meet for specific purposes when requested to do so by S.I.T., the Board or the Association. In the event of the repeal of P.A. 25 the SIT and I-SIT shall continue to exist.
- D. The above teams shall sit in an advisory and consultative capacity; team recommendations shall be presented in writing to the Board within 45 days of their adoption and forwarding to the Superintendent.

E. The team shall operate under procedures developed by the group. The SIT shall meet no less than monthly (September through May) unless the groups decide to meet more often and/or cancel a regular meeting.

ARTICLE XVII - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- A. The Board agrees at all times to maintain an adequate list of substitutes. Teachers shall be informed of a telephone number of a principal they should call before 7:00 A.M. to report unavailability for work. Once a teacher has reported unavailability, it shall be the responsibility of the administration to arrange for a substitute teacher.
- B. The Agreement shall supersede any rules, regulations or practices of the Board pertaining to the teachers which shall be contrary to or inconsistent with its terms. It shall likewise supersede any contrary or inconsistent terms contained in any individual teacher contracts heretofore in effect. All future individual teacher contracts shall be made expressly subject to the terms of the Agreement.
- C. Copies of this Agreement shall be printed at the expense of the Board and presented to all teachers now employed or hereafter employed by the Board. Ten (10) copies shall be provided for the Association to be used at their discretion. The Association may purchase additional copies at Board cost.
- D. If any provisions of the Agreement or any application of the Agreement to any employee shall be found contrary to law, then such provision or application shall be deemed null and void, but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect; furthermore, the provisions of such law shall supersede, to the extent of the conflict, the provisions of this Agreement and govern the relation of the parties hereunder.
- E. Medical examinations, excluding x-rays, which are required by the Board as a condition of employment shall be at no expense to the individual.
- F. The Association and the Board subscribe to the principle that differences shall be resolved by peaceful and appropriate means without interruption of the school program. The Association, therefore, agrees that it will not authorize any strike or interruption of activities in the school system, during the life of this Agreement.

G. This Agreement is subject to amendment, alterations or additions, only by a subsequent written agreement between, and executed by, the Board and the Association.

ARTICLE XVIII - LAYOFF AND RECALL PROCEDURES

It is hereby specifically recognized that it is within the sole discretion of the Board to reduce its educational program, curriculum and staff and that the procedures set forth in this article shall be used in laying-off personnel. It is hereby understood that when any full time teacher has been reduced to less than a full time schedule the following article will be initiated in attempt to return the said teacher to full time status.

A. LAYOFF PROCEDURE

In order to promote an orderly reduction in personnel when the educational program, curriculum and staff is curtailed, the following procedure will be used:

1. The term seniority as hereinafter used shall be the length of continuous service within the bargaining unit of the Harbor Beach Community School as defined in Article I (A) of this agreement. Leave of absence granted in accordance with the provisions of the Master Contract shall not constitute an interruption in continuous service. Credit given for outside teaching experience shall not be considered for the purpose of accumulating seniority, but shall serve to reduce the probationary period in accordance with the provisions of the Tenure Act. The administrators employed on the ratification date of the 1978-80 contract shall have their seniority defined according to Article XVIII Section B of the 1976-77 Harbor Beach Community School's Contract.

No later than thirty (30) days following the ratification of this agreement and thereafter by September fifteen of each new school year a seniority list shall be prepared and a copy distributed to each teacher. All teachers shall be ranked on the list in order of their beginning date of employment in this district.

In the circumstance of more than one individual having the same first day of work, all individuals so affected, will participate in a drawing to determine placement on the seniority list. The Association and bargaining unit members so affected

will be notified in writing of the date, place and time of the drawing. The drawing shall be conducted openly and at a time and place that will reasonably allow affected bargaining unit members and Association representatives to be in attendance.

- 2. Probationary teachers shall be laid off first. A probationary teacher shall not be laid off unless there is a tenure teacher who is certified and qualified to perform the duties of the position the probationary teacher is vacating or unless the position that the probationary teacher is vacating is being eliminated all together.
- 3. When reduction of staff at one level (elementary, middle school, high school) and increase of staff at another level (elementary, middle school, high school) is necessary, the following format will occur. (This is to assure that layoff at one level and hiring at another does not occur).
 - a. Volunteers will be sought to fill needed positions.
 - b. If no teacher volunteers, teachers will be placed in needed areas based on qualifications and seniority. It is the Board's position not to displace a first or second year teacher unless absolutely necessary.
 - c Placement in a position will continue until such time as a vacancy occurs which would allow instructors to return to the original position if they so desire.
- 4. A tenure teacher who is laid off pursuant to this Article has the right to be placed in a teaching position for which he/she is certified and qualified to fill and which is occupied by a teacher with less seniority.
- 5. For the purposes of this Article "qualified" shall be defined in the following manner:
 - a. For a placement in a K-8 grade level elementary position, a teacher is qualified if he/she has elementary certification and a minimum of three (3) semester hours credit in elementary reading courses. The district agrees that this requirement shall be waived if the teacher has a minimum of one year experience at the K-8 level in the past five years. K-6 teachers to be qualified for assignment to the 7th and 8th grade levels shall have a minimum of one year's teaching experience in the

academic area he/she is attempting to be assigned or meets highly qualified as defined by No Child Left Behind.

- b. For placement in a core Secondary teaching position (core shall be defined as Math, Social Studies, Language Arts/English and Science). A 7-12 teacher is qualified if he/she has a graduate or undergraduate degree with a major or minor in the subject area or he/she has a minimum of one year's teaching experience in that core area or meets highly qualified as defined by No Child Left Behind.
- c. When the "No Child Left Behind Act" becomes law, qualified will then be defined according to the state of Michigan's definition of "highly qualified" in accordance with No Child Left Behind for the purposes of this contract.
- B. Recall of teachers shall be in the inverse order of layoff i.e. those laid off last will be recalled first provided however that a teacher to be reassigned shall be certified and qualified as herein set forth to teach the subject area he/she is being assigned.

When a vacancy occurs, in a position from which a teacher has been initially laid off, such position shall be offered to that teacher, prior to being considered a vacancy subject to posting under Paragraph B of Article V, Teachers Employment and Duties. This sub-paragraph shall apply only to laid-off teachers currently drawing unemployment compensation and those teachers who have gone to another position pursuant to paragraphs 4 and 5 of Subsection A, Layoff Procedure, of this Article. No new teachers shall be hired unless all teachers on recall list have been rehired provided those teachers on the recall list are certified and qualified for the open positions.

Tenure teachers shall be retained on the recall list until they notify the Board that they resign their employment. Probationary teachers shall automatically be retained on the recall list for two years from the date of lay-off, after which it shall be the teacher's responsibility to notify the superintendent of schools, in writing not later than June 1 annually of his/her desire to remain on the recall list.

C. INDIVIDUAL CONTRACT

1. The individual contract executed between each teacher and the employer is subject to the terms and conditions of this agreement. It is specifically agreed that this Article takes

precedence and governs the individual contract and the individual contract is expressly conditioned upon this Article.

- D. The following procedures will be used when the number of sections of elementary grades are increased or decreased, but no overall increase or decrease in total positions result.
 - 1. If an elementary grade level is reduced by one or more sections, and another elementary grade level is increased by one or more sections, volunteers will be sought to leave that grade level to the following conditions:
 - a. If more volunteers exist than there are reductions in the grade level, the teacher(s) with the greatest District seniority, provided they are certified and qualified shall be allowed to leave that grade.
 - b. If no volunteers ask to leave their current assignment, the teacher in the grade level to be reduced with the least District seniority, who is certified and qualified, to be placed in the grade level with increasing sections, shall be so placed.
 - 2. Voluntary transfers when both parties are agreeable will be considered after section A has been implemented with the approval of the Administration.
 - 3. The Board will make every effort to provide elementary teachers with a tentative plan of the needed elementary grade sections for the ensuing school year prior to the last day of school.

ARTICLE XIX - PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION

- A. The salaries of teachers covered by this Agreement are set forth in Schedule A which is attached to and incorporated in this Agreement. Such salary schedule shall remain in effect during the terms of this Agreement.
- B. The salary schedule is based upon a normal teaching load of 185 days based on attached school calendar in Schedule B, as hereinafter defined, during normal teaching hours.
- C. The school year of 185 days will be used for the purpose of computing all leave time and salary deductions. 186 for new teachers.

- D. 1. Absence for conventions, educational meetings, and other professional meetings shall be permitted without salary deduction for up to three (3) days per year provided
 - (a) the Superintendent or his/her designee is notified and approved said meetings at least one week prior to the meeting date, and
 - (b) that funds provided for expenses related to such meeting attendance have not been exhausted.
 - (c) conferences and/or meetings that are fully reimbursed (i.e. Eisenhower funds) may be granted in excess of the above mentioned three days if no one else has applied to attend.
 - 2. Expenses for conventions and educational meetings shall be provided by the Board of Education.
 - (a) Lodging shall be limited to \$50/night/person.
 - (b) All approved mileage will be reimbursed at five (5) cents below the current IRS rate
 - 3. Attendance will be subject to the availability of qualified substitute teachers.
 - 4. Approval by the Superintendent will only be considered for meetings of a nature relating to the school program and the teacher's assignment.
 - 5. The Board shall annually budget for expenses related to attendance at such meetings an amount equal to twenty-two percent (22%) of the negotiated BA minimum salary, of which up to 80% shall be utilized for programs relating to the academics only and up to 20% for non-academic and/or extracurricular programs only.
 - 6. Attendance at academic conferences, conventions, and educational meetings shall be on a first-come, first-serve basis except that no more than fifty percent (50%) of the amount allocated in 5 above shall be distributed during the 1st semester. No applications for second semester conferences will be accepted before December 1.

- 7. For coaching workshops and conferences the Athletic Director shall divide the available funds according to the following formula:
 - a. 50% of the total allocated monies shall be divided equally among the athletic programs being offered during the current school year by the Board of Education.
 - b. The remaining 50% of the total allocated monies shall be divided equally among all coaching positions being funded by the Board of Education for the current school year and added to the totals of part A above.
- E. Conference and curriculum days, when schools are not in session, require attendance of the teachers at these events.
- F. The Board agrees to pay the employee's contribution to the State of Michigan Public Employee Retirement System as provided for in Public Act 136 of the Public Acts of 1945, as amended (HB 5888).
- G. Teachers, at their discretion, shall be paid every two (2) weeks in either twenty-one (21) or twenty-six (26) pays. Each teacher will inform the Business Office of his/her choice during the first week of school. Those educators who choose to have twenty-six (26) pays will have their checks mailed to their home address on the Wednesday prior to the Friday pay during the summer vacation. Annuity payments shall be mailed within ten (10) working days of last scheduled payday in a given month.

DURATION OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall become effective on July 1, 2005 and shall continue in effect to and including June 30, 2008. This Agreement shall not be extended orally and it is expressly understood that it shall expire on the date indicated.

TRI-COUNTY BARGAINING

G

By <u>fresident</u>

By Illid!

TCBA Chief Bargainer

Date 17-67-2065

BOARD OF EDUCATION

By President

By 13/12/05

many Oak

HARBOR BEACH EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

Bundidont

Date

SCHEDULE A

A. For the 2005-2006 school year 1.7% will be added to the 2005-2006 salary schedule.

For the 2006-2007 school year 1.75% will be added to the 2006-2007 salary schedule.

For the 2007-2008 school year 2.0% will be added to the 2007-2008 salary schedule.

Harbor Beach Salary Schedule 2005-2006 1.7%

STEP	BS	BS+15	BS+20	MA/BS + 30	MA+30
1	33908	35183	35847	36350	38067
1.5	34665	35966	36653	37167	38925
2	35422	36761	37458	37985	39783
2.5	36214	37581	38294	38837	40674
3	37007	38404	39133	39686	41569
3.5	37833	39268	40009	40582	42509
4	38661	40132	40891	41471	43444
4.5	39646	41036	41814	42409	44425
5	40621	41931	42731	43341	45405
5.5	41420	42882	43700	44327	46438
6	42222	43831	44670	45303	47469
6.5	43176	44823	45681	46328	48541
7	44128	45812	46691	47353	49619
7.5	45127	46850	47751	48429	50746
8	46126	47888	48805	49507	51879
8.5	47169	48979	49919	50632	53060
9	48214	50067	51029	51758	54242
9.5	49311	51208	52190	52940	55483
10	50409	52346	53351	54117	56719
10.5	51556	53538	54565	55349	58015
11	52702	54728	55782	56584	59309

Harbor Beach Salary Schedule 2006-2007 1.75%

STEP	BS	BS+15	BS+20	MA/BS + 30	MA+30
1	34501	35799	36475	36986	38734
1.5	35272	36596	37294	37818	39606
2	36042	37405	38114	38650	40479
2.5	36848	38239	38964	39517	41386
3	37654	39076	39818	40381	42296
3.5	38496	39956	40709	41293	43252
4	39338	40834	41606	42197	44204
4.5	40340	41754	42546	43151	45202
5	41332	42665	43479	44100	46200
5.5	42145	43632	44465	45103	47251
6	42961	44598	45451	46096	48300
6.5	43931	45608	46480	47139	49391
7	44900	46613	47509	48181	50488
7.5	45917	47670	48587	49276	51634
8	46933	48727	49659	50373	52787
8.5	47995	49836	50793	51518	53988
9	49058	50943	51922	52612	55191
9.5	50174	52104	53104	53866	56454
10	51291	53262	54284	55064	57712
10.5	52458	54475	55520	56318	59030
11	53624	55686	56759	57574	60347

Harbor Beach Salary Schedule 2007-2008 2%

STEP	BS	BS+15	BS+20	MA/BS + 30	MA+30
1	35191	36515	37204	37725	39508
1.5	35978	37328	38040	38574	40398
2	36763	38153	38876	39423	41289
2.5	37585	39004	39744	40307	42213
3	38407	39858	40614	41189	43142
3.5	39265	40755	41523	42118	44118
4	40125	41651	42438	43041	45089
4.5	41146	42589	43397	44014	46106
5	42159	43518	44349	44982	47124
5.5	42988	44505	45355	46005	48196
6	43820	45490	46360	47018	49266
6.5	44810	46520	47410	48082	50379
7	45798	47546	48459	49145	51498
7.5	46835	48623	49559	50262	52667
8	47872	49701	50652	51380	53843
8.5	48955	50833	51809	52549	55068
9	50039	51962	52960	53664	56295
9.5	51178	53146	54166	54944	57584
10	52317	54327	55370	56165	58866
10.5	53507	55564	56630	57444	60211
g. 11	54697	56799	57894	58726	61554

B. Teachers completing more than 11 years of service shall annually receive a longevity salary payment above that provided for in Schedule A-1 as provided below determined on the Step 3 of the individual teacher's track.

12-14 years service	1.5%
15-19 years service	2.0%
20-24 years service	3.0%
25 or more years service	5.5%

C. In each year of this Agreement, should the General Fund balance increase by an amount in excess of \$100,000 from the prior year's General Fund balance as reported in the annual audit, 50% of the amount in excess of \$100,000 shall be divided by the number of full

time teachers as of June 30th of that year in the District. The resulting figure shall be paid to each eligible teacher in a separate payment from normal payroll.

- D. Increments become effective at the beginning of the contractual period of each year and advancement under the salary schedule shall be automatic as of the beginning of the contractual period. Advancement on the horizontal salary schedule (Schedule A) shall become effective on completion of required academic or professional courses only at the beginning of the first or second semester. For a horizontal move across the salary track Graduate Semester Credit Hours beyond a Bachelor's Degree must be submitted to the Superintendent, in the form of transcripts and/or grade reports, for authorization of payment. (Example: Bachelor's + 30/MA.)
- E. The teaching experience of new teachers coming into the school district shall be evaluated by the Board. Credit for up to five years of previous teaching experience shall be granted by the Board if completed within the past eleven years. Credit for satisfactory active United States military service shall be allowed, provided the individual was teaching prior to entering the service. Teachers shall be allowed one step on the schedule for each year of active military service up to two (2) years. Beyond two years, credit will be awarded only to those teachers who are required to stay in Military Service on a non-voluntary basis.
- F. The District's payment of substitute teachers will proceed according to the following guidelines:
 - 1. If a substitute is used to fill a temporary vacancy of a known duration of twenty (20) working days or more, they will receive a per diem rate of pay according to Schedule A-1 of the Master Agreement. It is expressly understood that the vacancy must be known to be of twenty (20) working days or more on the first day of the substitute's use in said vacancy for him/her to be eligible for the above.
 - 2. If a substitute is used to fill a vacancy that is of unknown duration on the first day said vacancy begins, he/she will receive the per diem rate of pay according to Schedule A-1 of the Master Agreement on the twenty-first (21st) day of consecutive employment. (Regular sub rate of pay will be paid for days one through twenty.)
 - 3. When a teacher substitutes on his/her planning time he/she will be paid 20% of the current substitute teacher rate per class period covered.

- 4. Upon day sixty-one (61) of consecutive days worked, the substitute teacher is entitled to receive insurance benefits as per this Master Agreement.
- 5. Upon day one hundred twenty-one (121) of employment of a given school year, substitutes will comply with the provisions of Article II of this Agreement.
- G. When a teacher substitutes on his/her planning time he/she will be paid 20% of the current substitute teacher rate per class period covered.
- H. When teachers are assigned teaching responsibilities before or after the regular school day, they will be paid at a rate of one-seventh (1/7) of their regular pay per day for each normal class hour. A day's pay shall be computed by dividing the teacher's salary by 186, for new teachers and 185 for veteran teachers.

SCHEDULE B

All portions of Schedule B will be calculated at the BA Step 4 of the yearly salary schedule.

For athletic coaches only, a stipend of fifty dollars (\$50.00) will be awarded for each year of experience with a ten year maximum.

Position	2005-2008
Head Football Coach	9.5
Head Basketball Coach	9.5
(B&G)	
Asst. Football	7.1
JV Basketball (B&G)	7.1
Head Track	7.1
JV Football	7.1
Head Baseball	7.1
Girls Softball	7.1
Cross Country	7.1
Varsity Volleyball	7.1
Golf	7.1
Wrestling	7.1
Tennis	7.1
Soccer	7.1
Asst. JV Football	6.7

701 5 11	6.7
Freshman Bkball	0.7
(B&G)	6.7
JV Volleyball	
Asst. Track (B&G)	6.7
Position	2003-2004
7 th Gr. Basketball	4.1
(B&G)	
8 th Gr. Basketball	4.1
(B&G)	
Annual Advisor	8.0
Forensics Coach	3.2
Debate Coach	3.2
Cheerleading Coach	6.7
Secondary Play Director	3.5
Secondary Musical	4.0
Director	
Secondary Musical	350
Accompanist	
Director of Bands **	8.5
FHA	4.0
FFA Advisor **	8.5
Green Field Village	0.5% per tchr
Green Field Village	going
Safety Patrol	1.5%
Mackinaw Island Trip	0.5% per tchr
7 th Gr. Camp	0.5% per tchr
/ Gr. Camp	
Mentor Teacher	900
Driver Education	0.065 per hr
Adult Education	.065 per hr or
(Summer School)	grant allotment
·	which ever is
,	greater
12th Gr. Class Chair	2.5
11 th Gr. Class Chair	4.0
10 th Gr. Class Chair	2.5
9 th Gr. Class Chair	2.5
Middle School Student	1.75
Council	
Middle School Social	1.75
Committee	
National Honor Society	1.75
Journalism (w/class)	2.0
Journalism (w/o class)	3.7
Quiz Bowl	3.0
X MIL DOWN	

Mock Trial	3.7
H.S. Student Council-2	3.0
positions	
Mileage	\$.05
	below
	IRS
	rate
Elementary Musical	3.0
Director	
Elementary Play	2.5
Director	
Accompanist	300

**(.025 of scheduled salary for each additional week scheduled by the administration in excess of school year. Employees to be notified prior to April 1 of each year of there is a proposed change in the length that contract extends beyond the school year.)

SCHOOL CALENDAR

The calendar shall include the number of instructional and professional development days required by the State of Michigan. The District will comply with all state requirements for instructional hours within the framework of this calendar. The starting and ending dates of each school year shall be closely aligned with the Huron County Calendar Frameworks. The calendar will also provide for two parent-teacher conferences, one each semester

Teachers will work beyond the student calendar: one (1) day prior to the beginning of the school year, one (1) day at the end of each semester, and two (2) days for inservice

APPENDIX A

USE OF PERSONAL PROPERTY REQUEST FORM

following personal item(s) in instru as per Article XIII, Section E, of the	Is hereby authorized to use the action for the below noted length(s) of time e Master Agreement.
<u>ITEM</u>	LENGTH OF TIME*
1.	
2	
3	
BUILDING PRINCIPAL	AUTHORIZED TEACHER
Date:	Date:

^{*}Put in dates of authorization.

APPENDIX B

HARBOR BEACH COMMUNITY SCHOOLS TEACHER EVALUATION

In order to adequately evaluate teaching personnel and work for cooperative professional development the following Phase I and Phase II instrument shall be used. The instruments are based on *Enhancing Professional Practice...A Framework for Teaching* by Charlotte Danielson. A copy of the book will be provided to each teacher. The teachers are encouraged to review the rubrics for the twenty-two performance-based components. Teachers may submit evidence of their professional performance in Domains 1 and 4 to their evaluator prior to any of the mandated assessments.

Phase I Probationary Teachers (as defined by the Michigan Teacher Tenure Law)

Phase I assessments are required three (3) times per academic year. The assessments are based on observations that are completed within a clinical, supervisory cycle that includes pre-observation and post-observation conferences. These observation-based assessments must be completed by the time periods specified in the Master Contract. The third assessment, which constitutes the final, annual evaluation report, is based on the evaluator's classroom visitations as well as their holistic and summative assessment of the teacher's professional performance. Note: Additional classroom visitations may be scheduled at the request of the classroom teacher or at the discretion of the evaluator.

Phase II Tenured Teacher (as defined by the Michigan Teacher Tenure Law)

The purpose of Phase II is to support and assess veteran (tenured) teachers relative to their success in pursuing professional growth focused on one (1) to three (3) components selected from *Enhancing Professional Practice...A Framework for Teaching*.

Teachers in Phase II will be responsible for developing a minimum of one (1) and a maximum of three (3) professional performance goals, mutually agreeable to the teacher and the evaluator. Phase II goals must be grounded in Enhancing Professional Practice...A Framework for Teaching. The instrument will include a description of relevant strategies and the indicators of success for each goal.

Two (2) conferences (planning and assessment) will set the context in which the teacher and evaluator have the opportunity to discuss the teacher's goals, strategic plan, and indicators for success. The first of the two conferences, the planning conference, may be held in the spring of the school year preceding the year in which the goals are to be pursued or in the fall of the school year. The time of the planning conference is to be mutually agreeable to the teacher and evaluator but must be completed no later than October 15 of the school year in which the goals are to be pursued. The purpose of the goal setting conference is for the teacher and evaluator to reach agreement on the performance goals to be pursued and the success indicators to be applied.

The second conference, the assessment conference, provides the context in which the teacher and evaluator meet to discuss the extent to which the indicators of success have or have not been achieved. The evaluator is responsible for assessing the teacher's success in achieving the stated goal(s) by writing a narrative assessment statement. The teacher has the opportunity to reflect on and respond to the evaluator's statement.

HARBOR BEACH COMMUNITY SCHOOLS

Teacher Evaluation: Phase I: Clinical Observation Report, Part I

Teacher's Name		School		School Year	
E	valuator's Name	Grade I	Level	VSubject Observation #	
Ins Re	structions: Please rate the teacher's performance of frain from scoring criteria for which you do not ha	on any of th ave data. P	e twei Please	nty-two criteria for which you feel you have appropruse the following rating scale:	riate da
ι	= Unsatisfactory B = Basic P =	Proficie	nt	D = Distinguished N/O = Not Obse	rved
	Domain 1: Planning and Preparation	Rating	g	Domain 2: The Classroom Environment	Ratin
18	Demonstrating Knowledge of Content & Pedagogy		2a	Creating an Environment of Respect & Rapport	
16	Demonstrating Knowledge of Students		2ъ	Establishing a Culture of Learning	
lc	Selecting Instructional Goals		2c	Managing Classroom Procedures	
ld	Demonstrating Knowledge of Resources		2d	Managing Student Behavior	
le	Designing Coherent Instruction		2e	Organizing Physical Space	
1f	Assessing Student Learning				
		·	L		
	Domain 3: Instruction	Rating		Domain 4: Professional Responsibilities	Rating
3 a	Communicating Clearly & Accurately		4a	Reflecting on Teaching	
3b	Using Questioning & Discussion Techniques		4b	Maintaining Accurate Records	
3с	Engaging Students in Learning		4c	Communicating with Families	
3d	Providing Feedback to Students		4d	Contributing to the School & District	
3e	Demonstrating Flexibility & Responsiveness		4e	Growing & Developing Professionally	
			4ſ	Showing Professionalism	

HARBOR BEACH COMMUNITY SCHOOLS

Teacher Evaluation: Phase I: Clinical Observation Report, Part II

Teacher's Name	School	School Year
Evaluator's Name	Grade Level/Subject	Date
Summary Statement of Evaluator		Summary Statement of Teacher
	1	
Evaluator's Recommendation(s)		
·		
		•
eacher's Signature		Date
Acntor Teacher's Signature		Date
valuator's Signature		Date
Signature indicates completion of the appraisal proc	cess, not necessarily consens	sus)
his evaluation is based on:		·
re-conference date Classroom	observation date	Post-conference date
ocument Analysis: Specify		
nther: Specify		
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	

HARBOR BEACH COMMUNITY SCHOOLS

Teacher Evaluation: Phase I: Clinical Observation Report, Part I

Teacher's Name		School		School Year	-	
		Grade I	Level	/Subject Observation #		
Inst Refi	ructions: Please rate the teacher's performan rain from scoring criteria for which you do n	i∝ on any of the of have data. P	c twen	ty-two criteria for which you feel you have approuse the following rating scale:	priate data	
U	= Unsatisfactory B = Basic	P = Proficie	nt	D = Distinguished $N/O = Not Obs$	erved	
	Domain 1: Planning and Preparation	Rating	;	Domain 2: The Classroom Environment	Rating	
la	Demonstrating Knowledge of Content & Pedagogy		2a	Creating an Environment of Respect & Rappor	1	
lb	Demonstrating Knowledge of Students		2ъ	Establishing a Culture of Learning		
lc	Selecting Instructional Goals		2c	Managing Classroom Procedures		
Id	Demonstrating Knowledge of Resources		2d	Managing Student Behavior		
le	Designing Coherent Instruction		2c	Organizing Physical Space		
1f	Assessing Student Learning					
		l				

	Domain 3: Instruction	Rating	Domain 4: Professional Responsibilities	Rating
3 a	Communicating Clearly & Accurately	4	Reflecting on Teaching	
3b	Using Questioning & Discussion Techniques	41	Maintaining Accurate Records	
3с	Engaging Students in Learning	40	Communicating with Families	
3d	Providing Feedback to Students	40	Contributing to the School & District	
Зе	Demonstrating Flexibility & Responsiveness	40	Growing & Developing Professionally	
		4ſ	Showing Professionalism	

HARBOR BEACH COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Teacher Evaluation: Phase I: Clinical Observation Report, Part II

Teacher's Name	School	200001 1 cm	
Evaluator's Name	Grade Level/Subject	Date	
Summary Statement of Evaluator		Summary Statement of Teacher	
,			٠
	·		
Evaluator's Recommendation(s)			
eacher's Signature		Date	
fentor Teacher's Signature		Date	
valuator's Signature			
Signature indicates completion of the appraisal pro-	cess, not necessarily conser	usus)	
his evaluation is based on:			
re-conference date Classroom	observation date	Post-conference date	
ocument Analysis: Specify			
ther Specify			

APPENDIX C PERSONAL LEAVE FORM

	Date	
I hereby request a personal busi	ness day on	for
I hereby request a personal busi		(Date)
"for the purpose of cond to transact during non-te OTHER BUSINESS IN' RECREATION, ETC."	aching hours. IT WIL	
Signed	į.	
**************************************		*******
This request for a personal bus above, to be forwarded to the Su		ubmitted to me on the date indicat
Pr	incipal	
**********		********
The above request is hereby	APPROVED	DISAPPROVED
Failed to fulfill time	requirements	
Before or after a holi	day	
Business days exhau	sted	
		•
	Superinter	ndent
	5 -F 34	

1st Copy - Superintendent 2nd Copy - Principal 3rd Copy - Teacher

LETTER OF AGREEMENT

June 27, 2000

In the event that the State mandated hours of instruction change during the time frame of this agreement, it is mutually understood that:

Teachers are to be at their duty post at least five minutes prior to the start of school and at least ten minutes after the completion of the student day. These hours are established so we can meet the requirements of the State with a minimum of 20 hours cushion built into the schedule.

HBEA President:	Date:		
Superintendent:	 Date:		

LETTER OF AGREEMENT September 23, 2003

Conference Time Responsibilities

Types of responsibilities to be addressed during conference times:

- Parent Communications
- Professional Communications
- Subject Preparation
- Assessments
- Preparation of Materials

Conference Time Schedule and Compensation

In the event a teacher instructs more than 50% of a normal workday, they will be compensated for their entire preparation period.

In the event a teacher instructs 50% or less of a normal workday, their scheduled preparation time and compensation of said preparation time will be prorated in accordance to the number of periods instructed per normal work day as established by the Master schedule.

Example with seven (7) period day:

=	1 conference period per week
=	2 conference periods per week
==	3 conference periods per week
=	1 conference period every day
	·
	=

This concept will be adjusted to meet any level schedule.

Regarding non-instructional days that the employee is required to attend at the request of administration, said employee will be compensated at the appropriate daily rate. It is understood that the only exception will be that all part-time instructors will attend all parent-teacher conferences without additional compensation unless excused by appropriate administrator.

	Date: September 23, 2003
Harbor Beach Education Association	•
	Date: September 23, 2003
Harbor Beach Community School	<u>-</u>
District	

LETTER OF AGREEMENT

December 13, 2003

ARTICLE V - TEACHERS EMPLOYMENT AND DUTIES

Written notices of all vacancies in the bargaining unit will be posted in the office В. of the Superintendent, Elementary, Middle School and High School offices, and a copy forwarded to the Association president. A teacher may apply for any vacancy in the bargaining unit at any time. Such application must be in writing, addressed to the Superintendent of Schools. Applications will be considered should such vacancy occur, either during the school year or during the summer. The vacancy shall be filled by a qualified applicant with the greatest seniority in the bargaining unit. If there is no qualified applicant within the bargaining unit the Board may hire from outside the unit. Vacancies which occur after August 15 may be filled without posting. Schedule B vacancies, which occur within 30 days of the first scheduled practice/event, may be filled without posting. Should these positions exist for the following year, they will be declared vacant and posted. The Administration will notify the Association President in writing within 5 business days of the occurrence of such vacancies and who is assigned when the assignee has been notified.

FOR THE ASSOCIATION	FOR THE BOARD		
President	Superintendent		
Date: December 8, 2003	Date: December 8, 2003		